
Palm Beach State College Page 1 

PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 AGENDA ● SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 

Regular Meeting Lake Worth Campus - DBOT 4:00 PM 
Multi-Media Board Room, CE-129, 4200 Congress Avenue, Lake Worth, FL 33461 

Palm Beach State College advances the economic and social growth of our community and 
global workforce through innovative, high-quality learning experiences that transform 
students' lives. 

I. MEETING CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II. COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS

A. Faculty Comment
Presenter: Ms. Lauren Zatto, Professor I, Instruction Math and Science

III. AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS

IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES

A. Approve the August 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
V. APPROVAL OF BOARD AGENDA

A. Abstentions by Board Members
B. Public Comments

VI. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
1. Approve Contract Extension with Association of College and University 

Educators (ACUE) for Additional Cohorts in the amount of $400,000 and 
Authorize the President or Designee to Execute Agreement Documents
Staff Contact: Dr. Roger Yohe, Vice President, Academic Innovation and 
Strategy

B. Finance and Administration
1. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to the General, Unrestricted, Operating Fund 

(Fund 1) Reclassifying Budget Expenditures from Current Operating Expense to 
Compensation Expense for the Fiscal Year 2023-24
Staff Contact: Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration

2. Approval of Carryforward Spending Plan
Staff Contact:  Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration

C. Information Services
VII. APPROVAL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

VIII. TRUSTEES' COMMITTEE REPORTS

1



Agenda District Board of Trustees September 24, 2024 

Palm Beach State College Page 2 

IX. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

A. TMRW Sports Update
Presenter: Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, and Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager,
Facilities, Planning and Construction

B. 4.1M U.S. Department of Transportation and HUD Grant
Presenter: Ms. Angela Harrington, Chief Communications and Public Affairs
Officer

C. President’s 2024-2025 Goals
Presenter: Ava L. Parker, J.D. President

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
B. Finance and Administration

1. District Facilities Master Projects List Dated September 4, 2024
Staff Contact:  Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager, Facilities, Planning and Construction

2. Financial Analysis and Review - August 2024
Staff Contact: Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration

C. Information Services
XI. ACTION ITEMS

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
B. Finance and Administration

1. Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.51
Acquisition of Professional Architectural, Engineering, Landscape Architectural,
or Land Surveying Service
Staff Contact: Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director of Facilities

2. Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees
for Architects, Engineers, and Planners
Staff Contact:  Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities

3. Review Annual Financial Report for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year
Presenter:  Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration

4. Second Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.63 Liquidated Damages
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

C. Information Services
D. Human Resources

2



Agenda District Board of Trustees September 24, 2024 

Palm Beach State College Page 3 

E. Legal
1. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: The

District Board of Trustees
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

2. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:02: Meeting
of the District Board of Trustees
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

3. Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.01: District
Board of Trustees - Organization and Membership
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

4. Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.04: District
Board of Trustees -Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the DBOT
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

5. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:041 Notice to
Amend, Repeal or Adopt Board Rule
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel

XII. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Board Committee Appointments

XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. The College will be closed for Development Day on Tuesday, October 8, 2024.

B. The next District Board of Trustees meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 15, 
2024, on the Lake Worth Campus.

C. C. The College is hosting its second annual Emerald Torch Awards Gala on 
Saturday, November 16, 2024, at 6:00 pm on the Lake Worth campus in the 
Commons area. 

D. D. The Fall 2024 Commencement will take place on Friday, December 13, 2024, at 
the I-Think Amphitheatre. There will be two ceremonies: 12:00 pm and 4:00 pm.

E. E. We look forward to seeing you in the Duncan Theatre immediately following 
this meeting to celebrate Carolyn Williams and Wendy Link for their many years 
of dedication and leadership as members of the District Board of Trustees.

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

3



PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MINUTES ● AUGUST 20, 2024  

Regular Meeting Lake Worth Campus - DBOT 4:00 PM 

Multi-Media Board Room, CE-129, 4200 Congress Avenue, Lake Worth, FL 33461 
Palm Beach State College advances the economic and social growth of our community and global 
workforce through innovative, high-quality learning experiences that transform students' lives. 

Attendance 
Present: 
Members: Chair Pat Bishop, Vice-Chair Omar Soto, Trustee Melissa Friedman-Levine, 
Trustee Jon Harrison, Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein, Student Trustee Ryan Steeghs 

I. MEETING CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

The regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State College 
was called to order at approximately 4:01 p.m. on Tuesday, August 20, 2024, by 
Chair Pat Bishop. Chair Bishop welcomed participants to the meeting. The Chair 
asked Student Trustee Daniel Gil-Sanchez to lead in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS  

A. 2023-2024 Student Trustee Daniel Gil-Sanchez  

Chair Bishop introduced our outgoing Student Trustee, Daniel Gil-Sanchez. 
Daniel thanked Chair Bishop, Trustees, and President Parker for the 
opportunity to serve as student trustee. He shared how serving as student 
trustee had a positive impact on his college success. Daniel also discussed 
his hope that the administration would work closely with the student 
government to enhance student engagement within the College.  
Mr. Gil-Sanchez then introduced our incoming Student Trustee, Ryan 
Steeghs. 

B. 2024-2025 Student Trustee Ryan Steeghs  

Student Trustee, Ryan Steeghs, thanked President Parker for the 
opportunity to serve the College as the next student trustee. He also 
thanked Trustees and members of the President's Cabinet for their service 
and commitment to the College as well as Daniel for his service on the 
Board and keeping student interests at heart. 

III. AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS  

NONE 

IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES  

4



Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 2 
 

A. Approve the June 18, 2024 Meeting Minutes  

 DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES - Regular Meeting Minutes Final.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the minutes from the June 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Motion moved by Omar  Soto and motion seconded by Daniel  Epstein.  
Approved 

V. APPROVAL OF BOARD AGENDA  

A. Abstentions by Board Members  

NONE 

B. Public Comments  

NONE 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the August 20, 2024 Board Agenda 
 
Motion moved by Daniel  Epstein and motion seconded by Omar  Soto.  
Approved 

VI. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda 
 
Motion moved by Daniel  Epstein and motion seconded by Omar  Soto. 
Approved 

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services  

1. Approve the 2023 - 2024 Waivers and Substitutions for Students 
with Disabilities  

Staff Contact: Dr. Peter Barbatis, Vice President, Student Services 
and Enrollment Management 

 Transmittal VI.A.1.docx 

5

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=6
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=23


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 3 
 

 2023-2024 Waivers and Substitutions for Students with 
Disabilities - Palm Beach State College.pdf 

B. Finance and Administration  

1. Approval to Certify Prequalified General, Mechanical/HVAC and 
Electrical Contractors and Authorize the President or Designee to 
Certify Firms on a Quarterly Basis  

Staff Contacts: Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, Director, Procurement and 
Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities  

 Transmittal MT 6185.docx 

 Prequalification Certification GC HVAC Electrical.docx 

2. Approval of Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement  

Staff Contact: Dr. Delsa R. Bush, Director, Security and Risk 
Management 

 MT6162 - 6.B.2.docx 

 Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement-edited2024.07.25.pdf 

VII. APPROVAL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  

NONE 

VIII. TRUSTEES' COMMITTEE REPORTS  

NONE 

IX. PRESIDENT'S REPORT  

President Parker 

A. Summer 2024 Enrollment Update  

Dr. Peter Barbatis, Vice President, Student Services & Enrollment 
Management, provided an update on summer enrollment. Dr. Barbatis's 
shared information on headcount, summer modality and trends, ethnicity, 
age and gender. He shared the different "Call to Action" campaigns the 
College used to inform students of registration dates, tuition payment 
plans, and Pell Grants eligibility. Dr. Barbatis discussed the summer 
enrollment gains and future directions for growth. Dr. Barbatis also shared 

6

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=24
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=24
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=36
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=39
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=40
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=42


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 4 
 

the preliminary Fall 2024 enrollment numbers. He shared the numbers are 
within reach to surpass the total headcount numbers from last fall.  

Summer 2024 Enrollment Update 

B. State Insurance Health Plan Update  

Mr. Mike Pustizzi, Chief Human Resource Officer, provided an update on 
the transition to the state health insurance plan and overview of the cost 
employees can expect to pay. President Parker shared that there was an 
unexpected cost to the College that comes with transitioning over to the 
new health insurance plan since the $80M in funds were vetoed. Mr. 
Duffie calculated the College's cost to transition into the new plan would 
be $5.7M.  

C. Financial Aid Investigation Update  

Dr. Russell Kaufman, Chief Information Officer, shared an update on the 
fraudulent financial aid activity caused by people creating false student 
accounts. Dr. Kaufman stated the fraudulent accounts were disabled, IP 
addresses involved in the fraudulent activity were blocked, FBI and local 
law enforcement were notified and a College Task Force was formed to 
review and enhance the application process to prevent future incidents. 

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services  

B. Finance and Administration  

1. Monthly Financial Review & Analysis  

Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration, 
provided this information as part of the Board packet. Mr. Duffie 
was available to answer any additional questions. Trustees had no 
questions or concerns. 

 MT5722-10.B.1.docx 

 Budget.Analysis.June.30.2024.pdf 

 Budget.Analysis.July.31.2024.pdf 

 

 

7

https://www.passageways.com/
https://acrobat.adobe.com/link/review?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:64447e12-cad3-396e-8806-be9fab64c9e4
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=55
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=56
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=57


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 5 
 

2. First Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.63 Liquidated Damages  

Mr. Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel, provided a 
brief overview of the liquidated damages clause in contracts and 
the purpose for removing it from the policy. The Board asked 
questions regarding the process that is currently followed for 
liquidated damages.  

 4.63 Repeal Transmittal.doc.docx 

 REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.63.pdf 

3. District Facilities Master Projects List Dated August 7, 2024  

Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager, Facilities, Planning and Construction, 
provided this information as part of the Board packet. Mr. Stetson 
was available to answer any additional questions. Trustees had no 
questions or concerns. 

 TRMTL_Aug_ConstStatus_MT6081_X.B.3.docx 

 District Facilities Master Projects List_8-7-2024.pdf 

4. First Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.51 Acquisition of Professional 
Architectural, Engineering, Landscape Architectural, or Land 
Surveying Services  

Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, provided a brief overview of 
the reasoning behind repealing the policy.  

 TRMTL_Repeal 6Hx-18-4.51 Prof 
Services_MT6183_X.B.4_imbedded.docx 

 REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.51 Professional Services.pdf 

5. First Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Architects, Engineers, 
and Planners  

Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, provided a brief overview of 
the reasoning behind repealing the policy.  

 TRMTL_1st Reading REPEAL Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 
Fees_MT6184_X.B.5.docx 

 REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Arch, Engr, Planners.pdf 

6. Accept 4th Quarter Procurement Reports April 1, 2024 through June 
30, 2024  

8

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=58
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=59
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=61
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=63
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=65
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=65
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=66
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=67
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=67
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=68


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 6 
 

Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, Director, Procurement, provided this 
information as part of the Board packet. Ms. Alvarez was available 
to answer any additional questions. Trustees had no questions or 
concerns. 

 Transmittal MT6191 4thQ Procurement Reports.docx 

 Q4 Supplier Contracts.docx 

 Q4 PO Report.docx 

C. Information Services  

D. Human Resources  

1. Quarterly Human Resources Executive Summary from April 1, 2024 
to June 30, 2024  

Mr. Michael Pustizzi, Chief Human Resources Officer, provided this 
information as part of the Board packet. Mr. Pustizzi was available 
to answer any additional questions. Trustees had no questions or 
comments. 

 Onboard Transmittal 10.D.1.pdf 

 Executive Summary August 2024.pdf 

E. Office of General Counsel  

1. First Reading - Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.00: The 
District Board of Trustees  

Mr. Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel, provided an 
overview of the five policies brought to the Board in this section. 
Trustees had no additional questions or concerns. 

 Transmittal  Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.00.docx 

 Frist Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00 
Redline.pdf 

2. First Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.02: Meetings 
of the District Board of Trustees  

 Transmittal Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.02.docx 

 First Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.02 Redline 
.pdf 

9

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=69
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=71
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=72
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=73
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=74
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=75
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=76
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=76
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=78
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=79
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=79


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 7 
 

3. First Reading - REPEAL of Palm Beach State College District Board of  
Trustees Policy 6Hx-18-1.01, District Board of Trustees – Organization 
and Membership  

 Transmittal Repeal of of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.01.docx 

 First Reading - REPEAL of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.01 District Board 
of Trustees – Organization and Membership.pdf 

4. First Reading - REPEAL Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the 
DBOT Policy 6Hx-18-1.04  

 Transmittal Repeal of of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.04.docx 

 First Reading - REPEAL Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the 
DBOT Policy 6Hx-18-1.04.pdf 

5. First Reading - Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.041 Notice to 
Amend, Repeal, or Adopt Board Rule  

 Transmittal Amendment of of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.041.docx 

 First Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.041 Notice 
to Amend, Repeal, or Adopt Board Rule.pdf 

6. Quarterly Litigation Report  

Mr. Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel, provided 
this information as part of the Board packet. Mr. Denis Geovanni J. 
Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel was available to answer any 
additional questions. Trustees had no questions or comments. 

 Transmittal QTR Litigation Report.doc 

 Quarterly Litigation Report .pptx 

XI. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services  

1. Approve the Annual Institutional General Education Certification  

Ms. Julie Sivigny, Dean, Curriculum, updated the Trustees on the 
new State procedure to annually review and ensure the college's 
institutional general education courses comply with FL Statutes. 
Dean Sivigny provided the Trustees with the process the team 
followed to ensure Palm Beach State College was in compliance 

10

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=82
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=83
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=83
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=84
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=85
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=85
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=86
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=87
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=87
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=89
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=90


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 8 
 

with the State's request and stated the next steps in the Gen Ed 
review. 

 MT6190-11.A.1 Institutional GenEd Compliance Review OnBoard 
Transmittal.docx 

 2025-2026 PBSC_GenEd_Course_Description_Revisions 
July2024.pdf 

 DBOT Palm Beach State College FINAL FLDOE GenEd inventory 
WorkSheet 8-1-2024.pdf 

 Institution Certification 2024 form.doc 

 2024-02-26 Gen Ed Review Process - SUSFCS Presidents.pdf 

 DBOT Palm Beach State College FINAL FLDOE GenEd inventory 
WorkSheet 8-1-2024.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Annual Institutional General Education 
Certification 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein and motion seconded by 
Vice-Chair Omar Soto.  
Approved 

B. Finance and Administration  

1. Approve Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) Agreement with 
Lebolo Construction Management, Inc. for the Lake Worth TC117 
HVAC Replacement Project in Amount Not to Exceed $3.2 Million and 
Authorize the President or Designee to Execute Agreement 
Documents.  

Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, and Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, 
Director, Procurement provided this information as part of the 
Board packet. Mr. Cintron was available to answer any additional 
questions. Trustees had no questions or comments. 

 TRMTL-Lebolo CMaR_LW TC117HVAC-
Replace_MT6186_XI.B.1.docx 

 COI_Lebolo Construction Mgmt (exp 9-11-24)_7-8-24.pdf 

11

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=95
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=95
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=97
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=97
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=99
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=99
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=104
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=105
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=107
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=107
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=112
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=112
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/734e3dc8af1945a9a9a62cdbc53e196e-1551


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 9 
 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) 
Agreement with Lebolo Construction Management, Inc. for the Lake 
Worth TC117 HVAC Replacement Project in Amount Not to Exceed 
$3.2 Million and Authorize the President or Designee to Execute the 
Agreement Documents.  
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by 
Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved 

2. Approve a Permanent Utility Easement to Allow Florida Power & Light 
(FPL) Access to Construct and Maintain a New Primary Electric 
Service, Equipment and Meter on the Palm Beach Gardens Campus.  

Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, provided this as part of the 
Board packet. Mr. Cintron was available to answer any additional 
questions. Trustees had no questions or comments. 

 TRMTL_PBG FPL Permanent Utility 
Easement_MT5877_XI.B.2.docx 

 PBG FPL Permanent Utility Easement Legal Desc and 
Sketch_MT5877.pdf 

 Easement for Business -.doc 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve a Permanent Utility Easement for the Purpose of 
Allowing Florida Power & Light (FPL) Access to Construct and 
Maintain a New Primary Electric Service, Equipment and Meter on 
the Palm Beach Gardens Campus.  
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by 
Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved 

3. Approve the Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) Agreement with 
Kaufman Lynn Construction for the Palm Beach Gardens Concrete 

12

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=114
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=114
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=116
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=116
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=118


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 10 
 

Spalling Repairs and AA & AD Stair Tower Replacement Project in 
Amount Not to Exceed $4 Million.  

Approve the Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) Agreement with 
Kaufman Lynn Construction for the Palm Beach Gardens Concrete 
Spalling Repairs and AA & AD Stair Tower Replacement Project in 
Amount Not to Exceed $4 Million and Authorize the President or 
Designee to Execute the Agreement Documents.  
Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director, Facilities, and Ms. Jennifer Alvarez, 
Director, provided this information as part of the Board Packet. Mr. 
Cintron was available to answer any additional questions. Trustees 
had no questions or comments. 

 TRMTL_KaufmanLynnCMaR_PBG-Spall_MT6187_XI.B.3.docx 

 COI_Kaufman Lynn Construction (exp 2-28-25)_2-8-24.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Construction Manager at Risk (CMaR) 
Agreement with Kaufman Lynn Construction for the Palm Beach 
Gardens Concrete Spalling Repairs and AA & AD Stair Tower 
Replacement Project in Amount Not to Exceed $4 Million and 
Authorize the President or Designee to Execute the Agreement 
Documents.  
 
Motion moved by Trustee Melissa Friedman-Levine and motion 
seconded by Vice-Chair Omar Soto.  
Approved  

4. Second Reading - Approve the Amendment to Board Policy 6Hx-18-
3.49 Sexual Predator or Offender Information 
Notification/Publication  

Dr. Delsa Bush, Director of Security, Safety and Risk Management 
provided this information as part of the Board packet. Dr. Bush was 
available to answer any additional questions. Trustees had no 
questions or concerns. 

 Transmittal: MT6173-11.B.4.docx 

 REDLINED-2ndReadingAmendment-6Hx-18-3.49-SexualPredator-
or-OffenderInfoNotificationPub.pdf 

13

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=119
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/7ac3d092f73d4a80b154c73635016f03-1551
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=121
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=122
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=122


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 11 
 

 CLEAN-2nd reading_Amendment-6Hx-18-3.49-SexualPredator-or-
OffenderInfoNotificationPub.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Amendment to Board Policy 6Hx-18-3.49 
Sexual Predator or Offender Information Notification/Publication 
 
Motion moved by Vice-Chair Omar Soto and motion seconded by 
Trustee Jon Harrison.  
Approved 

C. Information Services  

1. Approve the Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Contract #230901 
with Innovate Audio Visual, Inc. in the Not to Exceed Amount of  
$1,425,000 and Authorize the President to Execute the Agreement  

Dr. David Edris, Director, Client Support Services, provided an 
overview of the current and future AV projects the College has 
with Innovate Audio Visual, Inc. Trustees had no questions or 
concerns. 

 11.C.1 Transmittal.docx 

 Innovate Audio Visual Piggyback Agreement (TIPS Contract 
230901).doc 

 IT TIPS Contract DBOT - August V2.pdf 

 230901 TIPS Request for Proposal (RFP).pdf 

 230901_CONTRACT_AUDIO_Innovate_Audio (1).pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Contract 
#230901 with Innovate Audio Visual, Inc. in the Not to Exceed 
Amount of $1,425,000 and Authorize the President to Execute the 
Agreement 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein and motion seconded by 
Trustee Jon Harrison.  
Approved 

14

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/34b38399c9ae401c9f14e97513196a78-1551
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/34b38399c9ae401c9f14e97513196a78-1551
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=124
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=126
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=126
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=130
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/a7c375ce034f47a5b44dcbd9d3c89e7d-1551
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingDetail/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551/agendaFileDetail/9315e4629afe4195854a25b4d1a06006-1551


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 12 
 

2. Second Reading - Approve the New Board Policy: Acceptable Use of 
Artificial Intelligence Technologies (Presenters: Dr. Russell E. 
Kaufman, Chief Information Officer) 

This policy establishes the appropriate and responsible use of AI at 
PBSC to ensure that they are employed ethically, securely, and 
effectively to support the College while respecting privacy, 
confidentiality, and legal standards. Failure to abide by the policy 
and associated procedure(s) may result in disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. 
Dr. Russell E. Kaufman, Chief Information Officer, provided this 
information as part of the Board packet. Dr. Kaufman was available 
to answer any additional questions. The trustees discussed the 
proposed policy. Trustee Soto requested the policy include an 
annual review. 

 AI Policy Transmittal Page.docx 

 PBSC AI Policy - Final.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the New Board Policy: Acceptable Use of Artificial 
Intelligence Technologies 
 
Motion moved by Vice-Chair Omar Soto and motion seconded by 
Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved with the amendment to include an annual review 

XII. OTHER BUSINESS  

Chair Bishop discussed the vacant General Counsel position and the request that 
Trustees have the option to participate in the final in-person interviews. Chair 
Bishop stated the Trustees interested in participating should notify President 
Parker. 

A. President's 2023-2024 Evaluation  

Chair Bishop stated that the President's 2023-2024 Evaluation was 
discussed at the August 13, 2024 Workshop and the final version was 
included as part of the Board packet. Trustees had no questions or 
concerns. 

15

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=135
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=136


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 13 
 

 2023-2024_PBSC_Presidents_Annual_Evaluation_Form_to_DBOT  
Final.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the President's 2023-2024 Evaluation 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by Trustee 
Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved 

B. President's 2024-2027 Contract  

Chair Bishop stated that the President's 2024-2027 Contract was discussed 
at the August 13, 2024 Workshop and the final version was included as 
part of the Board packet. Trustees had no questions or concerns.  

 MISC. Parker Contract 2024-27 FINAL (02743222).PDF 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve President's 2024-2027 Contract 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by Trustee 
Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved 

C. Annual District Board of Trustees Reorganization  

1. Election of Chairperson  

Trustee Epstein nominated Trustee Harrison. Trustee Harrison 
accepted the nomination and was elected as the new Board Chair. 

2. Election of Vice-Chairperson  

Trustee Harrison nominated Trustee Epstein. Trustee Epstein 
accepted the nomination and was elected as the new Board Vice-
Chair. 

3. Designation of Meeting Dates for Academic Year 2024-2025  

Chair Bishop stated the 2024-2025 Proposed DBOT Meeting Dates 
and Locations were included as part of the Board packet. Trustees 
had no questions or concerns. 

16

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=138
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=138
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=148


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 14 
 

 2024-2025 Proposed DBOT Meeting Dates and Locations 
Draft.pdf 

Motion: 
Motion to Approve the 2024-2025 Proposed DBOT Meeting Dates 
and Locations 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by 
Trustee Daniel Z. Epstein.  
Approved 

XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  

At the end of the traditional announcements, Vice-Chair Omar Soto notified the 
President and the Board that, effective immediately, he is stepping down from 
his role as Trustee due to the increase in his work responsibilities that would 
interfere with his ability to commit to the time and attention required to be a 
Trustee. 

A. PBSC's Fall Term is scheduled from August 26, 2024 through December 16, 
2024  

Session 1 (Full term - 15 weeks): August 26, 2024 - December 16, 2024  

Session 2 (Express A - 8 weeks): August 26, 2024 - October 17, 2024  

Session 3 (12 weeks): September 16, 2024 - December 16, 2024  

Session 4 (Express B - 8 weeks): October 21, 2024 - December 16, 
2024  

B. The College is hosting its Student Success Summit on Friday, August 23, 
2024, from 8:00-12:00 on the Palm Beach Gardens Campus.  

C. Save the Date: The Palm Beach State College Foundation's 2024 Golf Classic 
to benefit student scholarships will be held on Monday, September 23, 
2024, at Royal Palm Yacht & Country Club. For more information visit: 
palmbeachstate.edu/foundation/golf  

D. The next District Board of Trustees meeting is tentatively scheduled for 
Tuesday, September 24, 2024. Immediately following the September 
meeting, the College is hosting a special celebration in recognition of Carolyn 
Williams’ and Wendy Link’s years of s  

17

https://www.passageways.com/
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=161
https://app.onboardmeetings.com/95ae735bca5b43ef8cfe0401fb1def1e-1551/meetingBook/88265336ea164fe08a597e4611662489-1551?page=161


Minutes District Board of Trustees  August 20, 2024 

 

Minutes generated by OnBoard. 15 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT  

Motion: 
Chair Bishop asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:49 pm 
 
Motion moved by Trustee Jon Harrison and motion seconded by Vice-Chair Omar 
Soto.  
Approved 

 
ATTEST:                                        

                 Patrice G. Bishop, Chairperson 
 

                                                                   
         Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

 

18

https://www.passageways.com/


Agenda Item: VI.A.1  
      Consent 

 
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Approve Contract Extension with Association If College and University 
Educators for Additional Cohorts in the Amount of $400,000 and Authorize 
the President or Designee to Execute Agreement Documents  

Staff Contact: Dr.  Roger Yohe, Vice President Academic Innovation and 
Strategy 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  ACUE, the Association of College and University 
Educators, provides training to faculty for excellence in teaching of online courses. As 
part of PBSC's support of innovative pedagogy, faculty members can participate in an 
ACUE course on effective teaching. 
Faculty members who participate will explore and implement research-based 
approaches to teaching designed to improve student engagement and persistence 
and promote deeper learning. Those who complete the entire 25-week course in 
effective teaching practices will earn the designation of "ACUE Distinguished Teaching 
Scholar" for PBSC. 
This initiative aligns with PBSC’s mission, which “advances the economic and social 
growth of our community and global workforce through innovative, high-quality 
learning experiences that transform students’ lives.” 
ACUE programs are aligned with 25 core competencies outlined in the Effective 
Practice Framework. Faculty who meet course requirements may earn ACUE’s 
Certificate in Effective Online Teaching Practices, endorsed by the American Council 
on Education. 
Currently, 280 faculty members at the College teach online courses.  Through these 
professional development and certification efforts, 70% are presently ACUE certified. 
The recommended renewal would bring the percentage of certified faculty up to 90%. 
The proposed agreement extension adds three faculty cohorts (33 per cohort) of 
training. Upon completing the training, faculty receive a Certificate in Effective 
Teaching Practices, recognized by the American Council on Education.   
The District Board of Trustees previously approved expenditures with ACUE at its June 20, 
2023 public meeting. The order form attached to this recommendation would extend 

19



services under the Master Services Agreement with ACUE through December 31, 2025. 
New order forms are anticipated as cohorts are added through June 30, 2026. 
This purchase is recommended in accordance with Florida Administrative Code 6A-
14.0734 (2)(f) Professional services, including, but not limited to, artistic services, 
instructional services, health services, academic program reviews, lectures by 
individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and management consultants. 
Financial Impact: $400,000 through June 30, 2026. Operational funds have been 
identified in the approved fiscal year 2025 annual budget. 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Excel: Advance Teaching Excellence. 
Duration of Contract:  Two additional years through June 30, 2026. 

RECOMMEND: Approval 

Attachments: 

ACUE Quote September 2024 

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Any
12 202021

27



 

 
745 Fifth Ave #500  

New York, NY 10151 
 

 
 

ORDER FORM #7 

 
This Order Form #7 is entered into as of ______________________ (the “Order #7 Effective Date”) and is governed by 
the Master Services Agreement (the "Agreement") between EdCERT, LLC dba Association of College and University 
Educators, (“ACUE”) and Palm Beach State College dated December 20, 2021. The Term of the Agreement shall be 
extended and renewed, effective through December 31, 2025, upon signing of this Order Form #7 by the Parties.  In 
the event of a conflict between the terms of this Order #7 and the Agreement, the terms of this Order #7 shall prevail. 

 
Order Summary 

Partner Palm Beach State College 

Product(s) Platform Subscription, Level 1 
 

Purchased 
Learning Credits 

10 
 
See Program Terms and Conditions for options regarding usage of Learning Credits. 

Complimentary 
Offerings 

Partnership Portal 
Course-taker Impact Analytics 
 

ACUE Services 
and Deliverables 

During the License Term, ACUE will provide the services and deliverables described below.  
See Program Terms and Conditions for service level descriptions, terms and conditions. 

 
• Deliver a rollout plan that establishes planned usage of Learning Credits; 
• Designate a Customer Success Director to be the primary contact; 
• Provision access to Partnership Portal; 
• Deploy Dedicated Cohort(s) on LMS; 
• Staff Course Facilitator(s) for Dedicated Cohorts; 
• Enroll course-takers into Dedicated Cohorts; 
• Award digital badges and/or certificates; 
• Administer helpdesk technical support; 
• Provide scoring and feedback for reflections; and 
• Produce Course-taker Impact Analytics reporting. 

Partner 
Responsibilities 

Partner acknowledges the responsibilities described below align with ACUE success factors 
and serve to maximize likelihood of program success against stated goals. 
 
• Appoint an Executive Sponsor to champion the program; 
• Appoint a Campus Lead to be the primary day-to-day owner of the program; 
• Collaborate with ACUE to develop a rollout plan; 
• Understand and adhere to scheduling guidelines; and 
• Lead course-taker recruiting aligned with established best practices. 

License Term Commencing on Order #7 Effective Date and ending one year thereafter. 
 
The Term is subject to Partner’s payment obligations and termination provisions of the MSA. 

License Fees $96,250 due as specified in Payment Terms 

28



 
 

745 Fifth Ave #500  
New York, NY 10151 

 
 

Payment Terms Partner shall pay ACUE the License Fees listed above as follows: 

Year 1: $96,250 invoiced on signing, net 30 

 

 
 
Partner agrees to pay all applicable taxes associated with Fees due under this Order Form.  If 
Partner is exempt from taxes, Partner shall deliver to ACUE an exemption certificate on 
signing.  ACUE will invoice Partner at least thirty (30) days prior to an invoice due date. 

 

This Order Form #7 is subject to the following Program Terms and Conditions: 
 
1) Definitions: The following terms have the meaning set below: 

 
a) Access Period: The duration of the ACUE Platform Subscription, aligned with the License Term, during which 

time ACUE renders the Services and Deliverables described in Order Summary 
 

b) Add-on Credits: Learning Credits purchased during the License Term. 
 

c) Campus Lead: The individual designated to lead the ACUE program day-to-day including (i) managing 
against rollout plan, (ii) serving as Partnership Portal administrator, (iii) implementing a recruiting plan 
aligned with best practices; and (iv) serving as primary point of contact for day-to-day work. 

 
d) Course Facilitator: An expert in teaching and learning responsible to conduct course launches and guide 

course-taker implementation and completion. 
 

e) Customer Success Director: Primary point of contact responsible for ensuring program success through 
relationship management, project management and a deep knowledge of ACUE offerings. 
 

f) Dedicated Cohort: ACUE courses where enrollment is comprised exclusively of Partner-designated course-
takers, and aligned with ACUE institutional scheduling and implementation guidelines. 
 

g) Effective Teaching Practice Framework: A leading statement of the core competencies that every college 
and university educator needs to deliver quality instruction, endorsed by the American Council on 
Education. 
 

h) Executive Sponsor: A senior-level leader who champions program success at key touchpoints including: (i) 
by introducing ACUE campus-wide, (ii) motivating course-takers around course starts and mid-program, (iii) 
participating or supporting ACUE recognition ceremonies, (iv) appointing a Campus Lead for day-to-day 
operational needs and (v) aligning appropriate incentives with course-taker success. 

 
i) Course-taker Impact Analytics: Periodic reporting geared towards administrators that include aggregated, 

anonymized data about learning, implementation, self-efficacy, engagement and completion. 
 

j) Comprehensive Courses for Certification: 25-week courses, with requirements commensurate with a 
three-credit graduate-level course, aligned to the Effective Teaching Practice Framework, that prepare 
faculty with the comprehensive set of evidence-based skills to be effective in the classroom.  Completing a 
comprehensive course results in a certification in the Effective Teaching Practice Framework, awarded in 
collaboration with the American Council on Education. 

29



 

745 Fifth Ave #500  
New York, NY 10151 

 
k) Learning Credits: credits that can be exchanged for ACUE courses and related services during the Access 

Period, as shown in the table below.  The Course Catalog is included in Appendix A. 
 
 

Table 1: Learning Credit Legend 
ACUE 

Offering 
Learning 
Credits 

Usage 
Metric 

Comprehensive Courses 
for Certification  

5 Per Dedicated Cohort 

True-up Courses 4 Per Dedicated Cohort 
Courses 2 Per Dedicated Cohort 
Student Survey Center 1 For up to five Dedicated Cohorts 
Add-on Concentration 1 For up to three Dedicated Cohorts 

 
l) Courses: Multiple short-duration modules that prepare course-takers with evidence-based skills to be 

effective educators.  Completing a four-course pathwayearns a certificate in theEffective Teaching 
Practice Framework.  
 

m) Partnership Portal: a dedicated system to support course-taker recruitment, enrollment and 
communications. 

 
n) Platform Subscription: Access to ACUE human and technology resources to deliver professionally 

facilitated, online courses in effective instruction for faculty and staff and related services during the 
Access Period. 

 

o) True-up Courses: For individuals who have completed an ACUE course and now want to complete a 
four-course pathway to certification in the Effective Teaching Practice Framework. 

 
2) Terms and Conditions: ACUE Services and Deliverables are subject to the following terms and conditions. 

 

a) Dedicated Cohort Terms: 
• Courses may start throughout the Access Period aligned with Scheduling Guidelines 
• Up to 33 course-takers may participate in a Dedicated Cohort 
• Up to two (2) observers may join a course, who may not take courses for credit 
• Course End Dates may be extended by ACUE's discretion 
• After each Course End Date, courses remain accessible in a read-only state for one (1) 

month. 
 

b) Scheduling Guidelines: 
• Courses must be scheduled at least 45 days in advance of the course start date 
• Course changes less than 45 days from course start date are subject to a $2,000 fee 

 

c) Student Survey Center terms: 
• Delivered as an add-on to each instance of a Dedicated Cohort 
• For Courses: (i) surveys will remain open for the duration of the course, (ii) course-takers 

will receive individual reports provided at least 15 survey responses are received. 
• For Comprehensive Courses for Certification: (i) surveys will remain open for two survey 

30



 

745 Fifth Ave #500  
New York, NY 10151 

windows aligned with the end of the academic term, (ii) course-takers will receive 
individual reports provided at least 15 survey responses are received, and (iii) institutions 
will receive an aggregated report provided at least five course-takers receive responses and 
at least 100 total survey responses are received. 

 
d) Add-on Credits may be purchased at any time during the License Term for $9,250 per credit.  Usage of 

Add-on Credits aligns with the License Term. 
 

e) If one or more Learning Credits remain unused after an Access Period (each, a “Rollover Credit”), 
Partner will be entitled as a courtesy to rollover one (1) Learning Credit at no cost provided (i) Partner 
renews with no lapse in service and (ii) such Rollover Credit is used within three months. 
 

f) Course-taker Impact Analytics terms: 
• Reports group courses by semester of launch 
• Comprehensive Courses for Certification: one mid-course Progress and one Summary 

Report 
• Courses, one Summary Report 

 

g) Partnership Portal Terms 
• Usage of Partnership Portal aligns with Access Period 
• Partners may designate up to three (3) portal administrators 

 

 
The prices, terms and conditions contained in this Order Form are valid through October 31, 2024. 

 
ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF PARTNER ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF ACUE 

 
 
Signature: 

 
 
Signature: 

 
 
Name: 

 
 
Name: 

 
 
Title: 

 
 
Title: 

 
 
Date: 

 
 
Date: 

 

  

31



 

745 Fifth Ave #500  
New York, NY 10151 

Appendix A 
Course Catalog 

 
 

Comprehensive Courses for Certification 
 
Effective Teaching Practices, comprised of a four-course pathway 

• Creating an Inclusive and Supportive Learning Environment 
• Promoting Active Learning 
• Inspiring Inquiry and Preparing Lifelong Learners 
• Designing Learner-Centered and Equitable Courses 

 

Effective Online Teaching Practices, comprised of a four-course pathway 

• Creating an Inclusive and Supportive Online Learning Environment 
• Promoting Active Learning Online 
• Inspiring Inquiry and Lifelong Learning in Your Online Course 
• Designing Learner-Centered and Equitable Courses 

 

Pathway Courses to Certification 

• Creating an Inclusive and Supportive Learning Environment 
• Promoting Active Learning 
• Inspiring Inquiry and Preparing Lifelong Learners 
• Designing Learner-Centered and Equitable Courses 
• Creating an Inclusive and Supportive Online Learning Environment 
• Promoting Active Learning Online 
• Inspiring Inquiry and Lifelong Learning in Your Online Course 

 

Courses 
• Fostering a Culture of Belonging 

 

Add-on Concentration 
• Career Guidance and Readiness 

 

32



 

Agenda Item 6.B.1 
Consent 

 
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

September 24, 2024 

Members of the District Board of Trustees 

Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Recommendation that the Palm Beach State College District Board of 
Trustees Authorize Amendment No. 4 to the General, Unrestricted, 
Operating Fund (Fund 1) Reclassifying Budget Expenditures from Current 
Operating Expense to Compensation Expense for the Fiscal Year 
2023-24. Staff Contact: Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and 
Administration 

 
 
Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts: Palm Beach State College’s overall expenses are under 
budget but, there is a need to transfer budget from Current Operating Expense to 
Compensation expense to cover the increase in benefit costs. This is a non-cash, 
budget transfer between expenditure types of $1,800,000. 

 
Financial Impact: None. 

 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed: Expand – Ensure growth by attracting and retaining 
students through effective alignment of programs, services, and resources for a 
changing marketplace. Maximize resources. 

 
Duration of Contract: N/A 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

Fund.1.Amendment.FY2024 
 

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

33



34



35



Agenda Item: 6.B.2 
      Consent 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Approve Carryforward Spending Plan 
Presenter:  Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration 

Summary: 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  Palm Beach State College is presenting an annual 
spending plan category breakdown related to our 2023-2024 Operating Fund Balance, 
Pursuant to 1013.841, Florida Statutes, for review and approval prior to September 30, 
2024. 
 

The College is required to have a minimum Fund 1 Operating reserve balance of 7% of 
annual funds available.  When the College’s operations result in amounts lower than 
the threshold, it is to produce a savings plan, and conversely, if amounts result above 
the threshold, a spending plan must be produced. 
 

The results of operations for the 2023-2024 fiscal year produced an excess of $5,321,599.  
Three main positive contributing factors included, operational savings, infusions of 
Pipeline funding, and slight enrollment increases over prior year. 
 

The College proposes the spending of these funds related to the transition of employee 
benefits to the State. 
 

Financial Impact:  $5,321,599 
 

Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Collaboration - We will cultivate dynamic collaborations 
that leverage our student's impact on our community's economic and social growth. 
 

Duration of Contract:  Duration will vary based on each project undertaken 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 
23-24 Carryforward Spending Plan Template 08.13.24 Final 
 Certification of Financials 2023-2024 
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

36



Palm Beach State College
2024-25 Florida College System Carryforward Spending Plan
Pursuant to 1013.841, Florida Statutes
July 1, 2024

Project Timeline

Line 
Item 

#
Carryforward Spending Plan Category Specific Expenditure/Project Title

Carryforward Amount 
Budgeted for Expenditure 

During FY 2024-25

Total # Years 
of 

Expenditure 
per Project

Current 
Expenditure 

Year #

Estimated 
Completion 
Date (Fiscal 

Year)

Comments/Explanations

1. (e) Operating expenditures Continuation of strategic initiatives carryover-prior spending plans. 474,455                         1 1 2025 Non Grant funded capital purchase

2. (e) Operating expenditures Medical and Dental Equipment 789,363                         1 1 2025 Non Grant funded equipment purchases

3. (e) Operating expenditures Training, employee development, non recurring employee benefits 4,057,781                      1 1 2025 Nonrecurring program(s).

4. Select Category

5. [Create your own category]

Total as of July 1, 2024: * 5,321,599$                   

Amount Requiring Spending Plan 5,321,599$                   

37



38



Agenda Item: X.B.1 
      Informational 

 
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: District Facilities Master Projects List Dated September 4, 2024  
Staff Contact:  Mr. Kirk Stetson, Manager, Facilities, Planning and 
Construction 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  This report provides a monthly overview of all Facilities 
Planning and Construction projects collegewide.  The following Report Summary 
highlights the projects that are in the Active Construction Phase on each campus. 
 
September 4, 2024 – Report Summary 
 
LAKE WORTH CAMPUS 

- LW 6th Avenue Master Landscape Plans Phase 1B – QUAD 

- LW ETA128 Medical Simulation Training Center Remodeling 

PALM BEACH GARDENS CAMPUS 
- PBG - SITE - Berm Restoration & Fencing 

- PBG Eissey Theater Building Envelope 

- PBG CM Chiller 2 Replacement 

- PBG Eissey Theater Roof Replacement 

BELLE GLADE CAMPUS 
- No projects in active construction 

BOCA RATON CAMPUS 
- No projects in active construction 

LOX GROVES CAMPUS 
- LG DMST Building - NEW Construction 

 
Financial Impact:  Not Applicable to this report.  Impact to construction and 
maintenance funding is significant and estimated for each project reported. 

39



 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  CULTURE: We will create a learning environment 
committed to the success of every student and employee. 
 
Duration of Contract:  Not Applicable to this report, which is updated weekly for 
submission and review by Finance and Administration. 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

District Facilities Master Projects List_9-4-2024 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

40



District Facilities MASTER PROJECTS LIST

Project NAME Type Status FUNDING Project Budget CONST Cost CONST Start CONST End

DIST - Active Learning Classrooms - Phase 2 REMODEL CONSTRUCTION PLANT LOCAL 445,000.00$           est          $437.000 6/10/2024 11/1/2024

DIST - Exterior Entry Door Electronic Access Control ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION SFRF 2,000,000.00$        est       $1,991,000  est  5/10/2024 est 12/31/2026

Historic Building Remodeling/Renovation REMODEL DESIGN PLANT LOCAL 1,507,447.83$        TBD  est   10/1/2024 est 1/31/2025

LW TC117 Graphics Lab Remodeling (Rm TC 104N) REMODEL COMPLETE PLANT LOCAL N/A InHouse COMPLETE COMPLETE

LW CM124 Cooling Tower 2 Refurbishment HVAC COMPLETE CIF 290,000.00$           247,597.97$           COMPLETE COMPLETE

LW CF105 Cafeteria Re-Roof ROOF CLOSEOUT DEF MAINT 724,500.00$           675,000.00$           2/26/2024 COMPLETE

LW 6th Avenue Master Landscape Plans Phase 1B - QUAD SITE CONSTRUCTION CIF 3,845,188.76$        2,322,467.49$        8/1/2023 10/1/2024

LW ETD158 Cosmetology Electrical Upgrade/Remodeling ELECT/REMO COMPLETE CIF 33,775.00$             25,485.00$             5/1/2024 COMPLETE

LW ETA128 Medical Simulation Training Center Remodeling REMODEL CONSTRUCTION CIF/DONOR 4,850,000.00$        4,178,636.08$        8/1/2024 5/16/2025

LW FN110 AHU Replacement HVAC PRE-CON SFRF 200,000.00$           154,942.00$           est 12/18/24 TBD

LW LL113 Library Renovation/Remodeling/Addition REMO/ADDIT RFQ - A/E & CM PECO/LOCAL 9,800,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

LW NS501 Equipment Roof Cover ROOF DESIGN TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

LW BK129 E-Sports (SAC) Remodeling REMODEL HOLD CIF 94,824.00$             TBD TBD TBD

LW - SITE - Master Utility Plan UPDATES STUDY DESIGN TBD N/A N/A TBD TBD

LW - Domestic Water Loop Repairs & Replacement PLUMBING DESIGN DEF MAINT 71,991.00$             66,694.00$             On-going TBD

LW DW335 - District Warehouse Roof Replacement ROOF DESIGN DEF MAINT 193,233.00$           193,233.00$           est   10/1/2024 est          12/1/2024

LW TC117 - HVAC Replacement HVAC DESIGN SFRF 3,254,479.00$        TBD TBD TBD

LW CJB107 - OCPA-Production Studio Renovation RENOVATION PENDING TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

LW TC117 - OCPA Remodeling/Furniture REMODEL HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

LW CS - Counseling Staff Relocations FURNITURE HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

LW ITB118 AHU Replacement HVAC HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

PBG - SITE - Berm Restoration & Fencing SITE CONSTRUCTION CIF 163,000.00$           159,662.00$           3/15/2024 9/13/2024

PBG Eissey Theater Building Envelope RENOVATION CONSTRUCTION SFRF 1,010,272.55$        1,010,272.55$        2/5/2024 10/7/2024

PBG CM Chiller 2 Replacement HVAC CONSTRUCTION SFRF 735,298.00$           601,423.00$           8/12/2024 9/30/2024

PBG Underground CHW Piping  -AA102 HVAC CLOSEOUT SFRF 240,000.00$           237,872.00$           6/21/2024 9/10/2024

PBG CM Generator Replacement ELECTRIC PERMIT SFRF 640,000.00$           620,609.00$           TBD-LongLead TBD

PBG Eissey Theater Roof Replacement ROOF CONSTRUCTION SFRF 1,693,327.15$        1,693,327.15$        6/17/2024 11/1/2024

PBG LC107 Respiratory Care Lab Remodeling REMODEL BID GRANT 700,000.00$           TBD TBD TBD

PBG - SITE - Floating Dock Relocation SITE DESIGN PLANT LOCAL 30,000.00$             TBD TBD TBD

PBG Concrete Spalling AA & AD Stair Towers REPR DESIGN SFRF 3,560,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

PBG Eissey Theater - Structural Repairs (Stair Replacement) RENOVATION BID SFRF 960,000.00$           TBD TBD TBD

PBG Roof Replacement Exterior Covered Walkways ROOF DESIGN SFRF 480,000.00$           TBD TBD TBD

PBG TMRW Sports - Owner related scope NEW DESIGN LOCAL 96,600.00$             TBD 5/1/2024 est 12/31/2024

PBG Underground CHW Piping Replacement HVAC DESIGN SFRF 1,960,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

PBG LL104 CTLE remodeling REMODEL HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

PBG SITE Pedestrian Lighting Improvements - SoFi Experience SITE DESIGN FOUNDATION 222,801.00$           222,801.00$           10/4/2024 12/13/2024

PBG SITE-Perimeter Road Lighting - SoFi Experience SITE DESIGN FOUNDATION 127,099.00$           127,099.00$           10/14/2024 12/13/2024

Wednesday, September 4, 2024

General PROJECT Information FUNDING Information SCHEDULE Information

LEGEND:  FUNDING - CIF = CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND; DEF MAINT = DEFERRED MAINTENANCE; PECO = PUBLIC EDUCATION CAPITAL OUTLAY; SFRF = STATE FISCAL RECOVERY FUND

41



District Facilities MASTER PROJECTS LIST Cont'd

Project NAME Type Status FUNDING Project Budget CONST Cost CONST Start CONST End

BG - Fl Broadband Community Project REMODEL PENDING TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

BR BT104 Engineering Lab Remodeling REMODEL CLOSE OUT CIF 550,000.00$           392,983.00$           5/13/2024 COMPLETE

BR CB100 HVAC Upgrades 1st Floor HVAC CLOSE OUT DEF MAINT 942,529.95$           906,736.73$           5/1/2024 9/10/2024

BR AD102 E-Sports Remodeling REMODEL HOLD CIF 46,000.00$             TBD TBD TBD

BR CA101 & CB100 Roof Replacement ROOF DESIGN SFRF 1,000,000.00$        984,950.00$           TBD TBD

BR AD102 CTLE Remodeling REMODEL HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

BR CB100 Research Lab Prep Rm CB117.1 Remodeling REMODEL HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

BR BT104 HVAC Upgrade HVAC HOLD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

LG DMST Building - NEW Construction NEW CONSTRUCTION PECO/SFRF 62,149,663.30$      54,782,076.00$      5/8/2023 2/25/2025

LG LGA101 Medical Assistant Lab Remodeling REMODEL FURNITURE N/A N/A -$                         5/1/2024 COMPLETE

LG ERTC Master Planning Study BG & LG SITE STUDY LOCAL 62,150.00$             TBD N/A - STUDY COMPLETE

LG ERTC BG & LG SITE PLAN PECO/LOCAL 3,000,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

District Facilities CAPITAL PROJECTS PLANNING LIST

Project NAME Type Status FUNDING Project Budget CONST Cost CONST Start CONST End

LW Lowe's Construction Trades Innovation Center NEW STDY GRANT 1,000,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

LW Campus Sports Master Plan SITE STDY TBD -$                         TBD TBD TBD

LW SITE - 26KVA Electrical Extension SITE STDY TBD 15,000.00$             TBD TBD TBD

LW 6th Avenue Master Landscape Plans Phase 2 - ENTRY BOULEVARD SITE PENDING TBD 3,000,000.00$        TBD TBD TBD

LW HU120 - Shade Sails on East Plaza SITE PENDING TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

PBG - NEW - Trades Center Building NEW PENDING TBD -$                         TBD TBD TBD

General PROJECT Information FUNDING Information SCHEDULE Information

General PROJECT Information FUNDING Information SCHEDULE Information

Tuesday, September 3, 2024

LEGEND:  FUNDING - CIF = CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND; DEF MAINT = DEFERRED MAINTENANCE; PECO = PUBLIC EDUCATION CAPITAL OUTLAY; SFRF = STATE FISCAL RECOVERY FUND

42



Agenda Item: 10.B.2 
      Informational 

 
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Budget Analysis August 2024 
Staff Contact:  Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and 
Administration 

 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts: This agenda item provides a snapshot of the month-end 
budgets and actual revenues and expenses as of August 31, 2024. 
 
The College continues to closely monitor revenues, expenses, and fund balances, 
paying close attention to enrollment data as it relates to revenue. 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Excel – Organizational Vitality 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

Budget.Analysis.August.31.2024 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

43



2024/25 Year % Current 
Original to Date to Original
Budget 7/31/2024 Budget

Revenues:
     Student Tuition & Fees 77,086,801$    28,301,687$    37%
        Less: Legislative Fee Waivers (18,153,798)     (6,841,155)       38%
     Net Student Tuition & Fees 58,933,003$    21,460,532$    36%

     Dual Enrollment Fees 2,000,000$      333,333$         17%

     State Government:  
        FL College System Program Fund 65,808,361$    10,968,060$    17%
        Lottery 13,200,326      2,200,054        17%
        Performance Funding 1,362,933        227,154           17%
        Other 2,757,660        412,065           15%
     Total State Government 83,129,280$    13,807,333$    17%

     Federal Government 551,500           77,996             14%

     Private Grants/Contracts 400,000           159,295           40%

     Sales and Services 1,200,000        314,530           26%

     Interest and Dividends & Gain/Loss on Investments 400,000           199,364           50%

     Other Revenues 390,000           38,803             10%
     Non-Revenue Receipts 1,155,500        144,108           12%

Total Revenue 148,159,283$  36,535,294$    25%

Expenditures:  
     Compensation by Employment Category  
        Instruction 27,418,732$    3,315,368$      12%
        Instructional - Overload 3,700,000        1,073,506        29%
        Adjunct Instructional 12,129,000      1,673,145        14%
        Instructional Management 2,459,000        450,766           18%
        Institutional Management 1,505,000        252,360           17%
        Executive Management 2,277,000        481,980           21%
        Other Professional 19,076,200      3,882,657        20%
        Staff Part Time 2,700,000        418,192           15%
        Technical, Clerical Trade and Service 14,839,000      2,674,854        18%
        Student Assistants 400,000           17,706             4%
        Contingency - Budget Only 1,937,000        -                      0%

Total Compensation by Categories 88,440,932$    14,240,534$    16%

        Benefits 24,503,900      4,344,074        18%
Total Compensation and Benefits 112,944,832$  18,584,608$    16%

     Current Expenses   
        Professional Development, Travel, & Mileage 767,967$         110,759$         14%
        Freight and Postage 79,932             15,357             19%
        Telecommunications 188,222           56,065             30%
        Printing 133,064           426                  0%
        Repairs and Maintenance 1,759,011        200,007           11%
        Rentals 306,786           11,470             4%
        Insurance 2,889,270        1,928,741        67%
        Utilities 4,134,740        601,953           15%
        Other Services 6,917,193        1,022,095        15%
        Professional Fees 1,833,343        413,334           23%
        Materials and Supplies 4,057,947        277,201           7%
        Data Software - Non Capitalized 5,123,687        1,413,016        28%
        Maintenance and Construction Materials 483,118           96,857             20%
        Other Materials and Supplies 837,277           145,720           17%
        Library Resources 650,682           75,182             12%
        Scholarships and Waivers 2,062,081        963,371           47%
        Other Expenses 706,425           9,356               1%
        Contingency 500,000           -                      0%
     Total Current Expenses 33,430,745$    7,340,910$      22%

     Total Equipment 1,783,706        184,958           10%

Total Expenditures 148,159,283$  26,110,476$    18%

Net Revenue (Expense) -$                    10,424,818$    

Palm Beach State College
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2024

Budget.Analysis.August.31.2024 9/6/2024

44



Agenda Item: XI.B.1 
      Action 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.51 
Acquisition of Professional Architectural, Engineering, Landscape 
Architectural, or Land Surveying Service   
Staff Contact: Mr. Edgar Cintron, Director of Facilities 

Summary: 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  Second Reading and request for approval to repeal DBOT 
Policy 6Hx-18-4.51 Acquisition of Professional Architectural, Engineering, Landscape 
Architectural, or Land Surveying Services.  
 
This policy was last reviewed 08.12.1992. 
 
Guidelines are established by the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act, Section 
287.055 F.S. Said statute has been reviewed multiple times since 1990. 
 
Current Policies are being reviewed and updated to make the College more efficient 
and to incorporate best practices. 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  CULTURE: We will create a learning environment 
committed to the success of every student and employee. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.51 Professional Services 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

45



4-38  

Palm Beach State College Board Policy 
 

TITLE Acquisition of Professional Architectural, 

Engineering, Landscape Architectural, or 

Land Surveying Services 

NUMBER 

6Hx-18-4.51 

LEGAL 

AUTHORITY 

1001.61 FS, 1001.64 FS PAGE 

1 of 1 

DATE 

ADOPTED/AMENDED 

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 7/26/1979, 

8/18/1982 , 12/16/1987, 2/14/1990, 

8/12/1992 

 

 
Policy: 
Services of professional architects, engineers, landscape architects, or land surveyors shall be selected and 

negotiated according to Section 287.055 Florida Statutes and in accordance with administrative procedural 

guidelines adopted by the District Board of Trustees. 

46



Agenda Item: XI.B.2 
      Action 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 
Fees for Architects, Engineers, and Planners.   
Staff Contact:  Mr. Edgar Cintron, Facilities Director. 

Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  Second Reading and request for approval to repeal DBOT 
Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Architects, Engineers, and Planners.  
 
This policy was last reviewed 03.14.1990. 
 
Pertinent guidelines are established by the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act, 
Section 287.055 F.S. Said statute has been revised multiple times since 1990. The State 
Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and related statutes govern such activities 
for the College System.  
 
Current Policies are being reviewed and cleaned up to make us more efficient and to 
incorporate best practices. 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  CULTURE: We will create a learning environment 
committed to the success of every student and employee. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 

RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: 

REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Arch, Engr, Planners 

  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

47



Palm Beach State College Board Policy 
 

TITLE Fees for Architects, Engineers, and Planners NUMBER 

6Hx-18-4.52 

LEGAL 

AUTHORITY 

1001.61 FS, 1001.64 FS PAGE 

1 of 1 

DATE 

ADOPTED/AMENDED 

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 7/26/1979, 

6/20/1984, 3/14/1990; Amended 08/20/2024 

 

 
Policy: 

The basic fee for services paid to an architect, engineer, or planner when employed directly by the 

Board of Trustees on an individual construction or planning project shall be negotiated in 

accordance with the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act, Section 287.055 FS. The Act 

requires a two-step process. Competitive negotiations shall occur with the firm or firm(s) only after 

they have been recommended in accordance with the Competitive Selection Process of the statute.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4-39 

48



 

   

 

Agenda Item: 11.B.3 
      Action 

 
Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:  September 24, 2024 

To:  Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Review Annual Financial Report for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year   
Presenter:  Mr. James Duffie, Vice President, Finance and Administration 

Summary: 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  The Annual Financial Report (AFR) for the 2023-2024 fiscal 
year that ended on June 30, 2024, shows Palm Beach State College's net position and 
activities. Revenue in the current unrestricted funds, Funds 1 and 3, was over $143 
million. Current restricted fund revenues, Fund 2 - Grants, Student Activities, and 
Athletics, were approximately $19 million. 
The College also expended approximately $67 million in financial aid, Fund 5 - 
Scholarships, and over $37 million in Fund 7 - Capital Improvement and Construction. 
Fund 1, Unrestricted operating expenses were $31 million.   
The state audit is underway for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, and the audited financial 
statements will be released subsequent to the audit. Summary information can be 
found on pages 12-16 of the report. 
The full report can be found on the Palm Beach State College website at: 
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/finance/documents/AnnualFinancialReport2023-
2024.pdf  
Financial Impact:  N/A 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Collaboration - We will cultivate dynamic collaborations 
that leverage our student's impact on our community's economic and social growth. 
Duration of Contract:  N/A  
RECOMMEND: Approval 

Attachments: 

AnnualFinancialReqport2023-2024 
  

Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

49

https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/finance/documents/AnnualFinancialReport2023-2024.pdf
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/finance/documents/AnnualFinancialReport2023-2024.pdf


      Agenda Item: XI.B.4 
            ACTION   

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 
Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:  Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.63 Liquidated Damages Policy  
  Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel  
Summary: 

Background/Pertinent Facts:  Board Policy 6Hx-18-4.63, adopted on February 27, 
1975, and amended on August 8, 1990, outlines the conditions under which liquidated 
damages are applied to construction contracts when a contractor fails to complete a 
project within the specified timeframe.  
 
Courts have consistently denied the enforceability of liquidated damages clauses, when 
deemed punitive, unreasonable, and not based on relevant factors. However, in addition 
the analyzing relevant factors, liquidated damages clauses have been deemed 
enforceable if the assessment is not strictly a penalty and the assessment of actual 
damages at the time of the execution was uncertain.   
 
The current policy prescribes a flat daily rate, solely dependent on the contract sum.  
Factors such as the nature and/or purpose of the contract, circumstances surrounding 
the execution of the contract, natural and/or ordinary consequences of a breach, and the 
unique circumstances surrounding each case are not considered.  
 
The college’s current contract management practices include the review and drafting, as 
applicable, of detailed clauses on liquidated damages that are customized to the specific 
project requirements. These contracts are drafted and reviewed regularly to ensure 
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, making an additional policy redundant.  
 
Given the above, Board Policy 6Hx-18-4.63 on liquidated damages is no longer legally 
enforceable, and as such, the college recommends that the Board of Trustees approve 
the repeal of Policy 6Hx-18-4.63. 

This policy was presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 

Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Conscientious:  We serve the College community 
and global society as we aspire to do what is right, ethical, and fair. 
Duration of Contract:  N/A  
 

50



RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: Second Reading - REPEAL Liquidated Damages Policy (6Hx-18-4.63) 
 
              
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 

51



Palm Beach State College  Board Policy  

TITLE  Liquidated Damages  NUMBER  

6Hx-18-4.63  

LEGAL AUTHORITY  
100.61 FS, 1001.64 FS  PAGE  

1 of 2  

DATE 

ADOPTED/AMENDED  

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 8/8/1990    

  

Policy:  

  

Failure to complete a construction project within the time fixed in any construction contract and/or 

agreement will result in substantial injury to the owner, and damages arising from such failure 

cannot be calculated with any degree of certainty; it is for this reason that the owner adopts the 

following conditions and schedule of liquidated damages:   

  

1. The number of days for the contract shall be specified in the contract documents in accordance 

with the State Board of Education regulations.  

2. The number of days indicated by the proposal shall be the basis for establishing the date of 

substantial completion. Time on the contract will begin with the notice to proceed issued by 

the architect.   

3. The contractor recognizes and agrees that damages due to failure of the contractor to complete 

the construction project on the date scheduled are difficult to estimate and/or  prove. The 

contractor consents and agrees that it is not necessary for the owner to prove monetary loss.   

4. The contractor agrees to pursue this contract diligently, to provide sufficient labor and to 

schedule receipt of materials so as to insure full completion on or before the date of the 

substantial completion, and, should he/she fail to do so, he/she will pay the owner liquidated 

damages, not to be construed as a penalty, in accordance with the schedule below:   

  

Contract Sum         Liquidated Damages  

$00 to $100,000        $150 per day  

$100,001 to $250,000       $200 per day  

$250,001 to $500,000       $300 per day  

$500,001 to $1,000,000      $400 per day  

$1,000,001 to $2,500,000      $500 per day  

$2,500,001 and over       $600 per day  

  

Larger amounts for liquidated damages may be specified for construction projects which have a 

critical time factor for completion. In such cases, failure of the contractor to meet the time of the 

construction contract would disrupt and damage the programs to be housed in the facility under 

contract.   

4-48  

Liquidated Damages  
52



Page 2 of 2  

  

  

5. The actual date of completion shall be the date of substantial completion or that date at which 

time the project is capable of being beneficially occupied by the owner for the purpose for 

which it was intended, which date would be as determined by the owner following consultation 

with the architect and would be certified by the designing architect.  

  

6. The contractor may request an extension of time in writing in the form of a change order in 

accordance with the agreement, due to delays caused by acts of God, authorized labor strikes, 

authorized actions of the Federal government or abnormal weather and causes totally beyond 

the control of the contractor. This written request to the owner through the architect must be 

made within 20 days of the delay. Requests for time extension shall be considered by the 

designing architect who will make his/her recommendation to the Board as to the granting or 

denial of the request. Normally anticipated inclement weather shall not be considered as reason 

for delay, and causes beyond the control of the contractor are limited to such things as changes 

ordered by the owner necessitating additional time,   unavailability of material that may have 

been originally properly scheduled and anticipated holidays.  

  

7. The Board may grant or deny extensions of time by its own good judgment, considering the 

recommendations of the designing architect and President of the College.  

  

8. The provisions of this condition are in addition to, and not in place of, all other remedies 

afforded to the owner by virtue of all the contract documents or the laws of the State of Florida.  

  

9. The appropriate and applicable portions of this condition shall also appear in the construction 

contract agreement itself.  

4-49  

53



             Agenda Item: 11.E.1
                      
Action    

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: 
The District Board of Trustees 
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel 

 
Summary: 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  The current Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: The District Board 
of Trustees is recommended for amendment to remove outdated language. It is also 
recommended that policies 6Hx-18-1:01 and 6Hx-18- 1:04 be merged with 6Hx-18-1.00 
to streamline the indexation of Section 1 of the DBOT policy.   
 
This policy was initially presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 
The DBOT did not request any additional comments or changes during that session. 
 
These recommendations are part of the General Counsel’s Office's effort to update 
Section 1 of the DBOT policies. 
 
Financial Impact:  No Financial Impact 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Conscientious:  We serve the College community and 
global society as we aspire to do what is right, ethical, and fair. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: Second Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: The District 
Board of Trustees  
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 

54



Page 1 of 2 

Palm Beach State College Board Policy 

TITLE The District Board of Trustees NUMBER 
6Hx-18-1.00 

LEGAL  AUTHORITY 
1001.61 FS, 1001.63 FS,  1001.64 FS, 6A- 
14.024 FAC 

PAGE 
1 of 21 

DATE 
ADOPTED/AMENDED 

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 6/22/1975, 
6/19/2001, 09/XX/2022 

Policy: 

The District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State College (hereinafter, the “Board”) is a 
political subdivision  of  the  state as  specifically provided by law and rules of the State Board of 
Education.  

The Board is is the governing Board of the College,.   It is vested by the law with the responsibility 
to  o operate  the College and with such necessary authority as may be needed for the proper 
operation  and  iimprovement thereof in accordance with Florida Statutes and rules of the State 
Board of Educatiowith applicable law and regulationsn. In all suits against the Board, service of 
process shall be made on the chairperson of the Board, or, in the absence the Chair, the President 
of the College, or the President’s designee.   

The District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State College is the governing Board of the College. 
It is vested by the law with the responsibility to operate the College and with such necessary 
authority as may be needed for the proper operation and improvement thereof in accordance with 
Florida Statutes and rules of the State Board of Education.  

After considering recommendations submitted by the President, the Board shall adopt such rules, 
policies, and procedures as are necessary to operate the College in such manner as to assure the 
fulfillment of the responsibilities assigned to Board.   
The District Board of Trustees is constituted a body corporate by the name of “The District Board 
of Trustees of Palm Beach State College, Florida.”  It shall be referred to hereafter as the District 
Board of Trustees.  In all suits against the Board, service of process shall be made on the 
chairperson of the Board, or, in the absence of the chairperson on another member of the Board.  

55



Page 2 of 2 

Statute provides for five members of the Board. Trustees are appointed by the Governor  and  
confirmed by the Senate. Pending Senate confirmation, Trustees may begin service upon approval 
of four members of the State Board of Education. Regular terms are four years in length. 

At its first regular meeting after July 1 each year, the Board shall organize by electing a  
chairperson whose duty it is to preside at all meetings of the Board, and a vice chairperson 
whose duty it is to act as chairperson during the absence or disability of the elected  
chairperson. 

The President shall be the executive officer and corporate secretary of the Board , as well as the 
chief administrative officer of the College. All components of the  
institution and all aspects of its s operation are responsible to the Board through the President. 

Within fourteen (14) calendar days after the annual organizational meeting of the Board, the 
President of the College shall file with the Chancellor of the State Board of  
Education a copy of the organizational proceedings identifying the chairperson and vice  
chairperson and the schedule of regular meetings for the year. 

If the position of chairperson becomes vacant, the Board shall proceed to elect a chairperson 
at the ensuing regular or special meeting. At the organizational meeting, the President shall  
act as chairperson until the organization is completed. 

 It is the duty of the Board chairperson to notify the Governor, in writing, whenever a Board 
member fails to attend three (3) consecutive regular board meetings in any one fiscal year ; 
such absences may be grounds for removal. 

1-1 

56



          Agenda Item: 11.E.2
               Action 
    
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 
Agenda Transmittal Sheet 

 
Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:02: 
Meeting of the District Board of Trustees 
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel 

 
Summary: 
 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  The current Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.02: Meetings of the 
District Board of Trustees is recommended for amendment for clarification as to 
Notice, types of meetings, amendment to agenda after the agenda has been made 
public, virtual attendance, and updating language.  
 
This policy was initially presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 
The DBOT did not request any additional comments or changes during that session. 
 
The recommendations are made as part of the Legal Department’s commitment to 
bring Policies up to date.   
 
Financial Impact:  n/a 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  n/a 
 
Duration of Contract:  n/a 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments: Second Reading - Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.02 - Meetings 
of the District Board of Trustees 
 
              
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 57



1-3  

Palm Beach State College Board Policy 
 

TITLE Meetings of the District Board of Trustees NUMBER 
6Hx-18-1.02 

LEGAL 
AUTHORITY 

1001.61 FS, 1001.64 FS, 6A-14.024 FAC PAGE 
1 of 2 

DATE 
ADOPTED/AMENDED 

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 6/22/1975, 
9/27/1988, 5/8/1991, 6/19/2001, Revised 
XX/YY/2024 

 

 
The Board of Trustees shall have the authority to convene regular meetings, special meetings, 
emergency meetings, executive sessions, workshops, and information sessions.  
 

Policy: 

1. Notice.  The President’s Office will provide notice of Board meetings pursuant to applicable 
Florida Statute, as amended.   

2. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall follow a schedule adopted by the 
Board. The place of the meetings may be rotated among the campuses of the College, other 
locations, or remotely via telephone or online as permitted by law.  

a. If a meeting is canceled or if there is no meeting scheduled, the president is 
authorized to approve routine business items.  

a.b. These items will be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting for 
confirmation. 

3. Special and Emergency Meetings. Special and Emergency meetings of the Board can be called 
by the chairperson, by the president when requested by a majority of the board, or by the 
majority of the Board itself.  Actions at special meetings, including emergency meetings, have 
the same force and effect as actions at regular meetings. In the event a special meeting is 
called, the Board shall notify one newspaper of general circulation in the District of the time, 
date, place and purpose of the meeting at the earliest possible time. Special or Emergency 
meetings may be conducted in person, remotely via telephone, or virtually as permitted by law. 

2.4.Workshops and Information Sessions. Workshops and Information sessions may be held when 
necessary to discuss matters of Board interests, however, no action, including preliminary 
agreements may be taken at such meetings.  

3.5.Quorum. Three (3) members of the appointed District Board of Trustees shall constitute a 
quorum for any meeting.  Trustees participating by teleconference shall be considered present 
for purpose of establishing a quorum. 

4. Minutes. The minutes of regular meetings shall include agenda items, and shall set forth clearly 
all actions and proceedings of the board including the record of vote. The minutes of special 
meetings shall set forth the facts regarding the procedure in calling the meeting, the reason for 

58



1-4  

the meeting, and shall include agenda items and all actions and proceedings of the board 
including the record of vote. The actions taken at special meetings shall have the same force 
and effect as if taken at a regular meeting. 

5. Place of Meeting. All regular and special meetings of the Board shall be held at the 
administrative headquarters of the College unless the Board designates another location. If 
another location is designated, public notice shall be given at least 10 days prior to the time of 
the regular or special meeting unless an emergency situation arises which requires immediate 
attention. 

6.  

6. Agenda. The president of the College shall prepare, advertise, and distribute in accordance 
with the Administrative Procedures Actapplicable laws, an agenda at least seven (7) days prior 
to each meeting of the Board. Only those items appearing on the prepared and advertised 
agenda will be considered by the District Board of Trustees, except as provided in the 
Administrative Procedures Act. Generally, only those items appearing on the prepared and 
advertised agenda will be considered by the District Board of Trustees, except as otherwise 
deemed necessary by the Board and permitted by law. After the agenda has been made 
available, changes may be made in accordance with law.  

7.  
. 

8. Voting. Voting shall be by voice, either in person or virtually/telephonic, providing that their 
discussion of the agenda items and casting of votes can be heard by all in attendance. If the 
chairperson wishes to make a motion or to second a motion, he/she shall relinquish the gavel 
to the vice chairperson, or, in his/her absence, to any other Board member to act as temporary 
presiding officer  

59



1-5  

Meetings of the District Board of Trustees 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Voting. Voting shall be by voice unless a written ballot is requested by the chairperson of the Board. 
If the chairperson wishes to make a motion or to second a motion, he/she shall relinquish the gavel to 
the vice chairperson, or, in his/her absence, to any other Board member to act as temporary presiding 
officer. 
Board Policy. It shall be the policy of the Board to encourage the attendance of interested persons at 
Board meetings, including representatives of the press. 

60



          Agenda Item: 11.E.3
              Action  
 

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.01: 
District Bord of Trustees - Organization and Membership 
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel 

 
 
Summary: 
 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  The Staff recommends that the District Board of 
Trustees repeal policy 6Hx-18-1:01, consolidating it with 6Hx-18-1.00 to simplify the 
indexing of Section 1 of the DBOT policy. This suggestion follows a recent evaluation 
of the District Board of Trustees' Section 1 - General Policies. This consolidation 
enhances the efficiency and clarity of policies.  
 
This policy was initially presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 
The DBOT did not request any additional comments or changes during that session.  
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Conscientious:  We serve the College community and 
global society as we aspire to do what is right, ethical, and fair. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
Attachments:  Second Reading - Repeal of District Board of Trustees Organization 
and Membership Policy 6Hx-18-1.01 
              
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 

61



Palm Beach State College  Board Policy  

TITLE  

  

District Board of Trustees – Organization 

and Membership  

NUMBER  

6Hx-18-1.01  

LEGAL  AUTHORITY  
1001.61 FS, 1001.64 FS, 6A-14.024,   PAGE  

1 of 1  

DATE 

ADOPTED/AMENDED  

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 6/22/1975, 

6/19/2001  

  

 

Policy:  

1. Statute provides for five members of the District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State 

College.  Trustees are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate.  Pending Senate 

confirmation, Trustees may begin service upon approval of four members of the State Board 

of Education.  Regular terms are four years in length.  

2. At its first regular meeting after July 1 each year, the Board shall organize by electing a 

chairperson whose duty it is to preside at all meetings of the Board, and a vice chairperson 

whose duty it is to act as chairperson during the absence or disability of the elected chairperson.  

3. The president shall be the executive officer and corporate secretary of the District Board of 

Trustees as well as the chief administrative officer of the College. All components of the 

institution and all aspects of its operation are responsible to the District Board of Trustees 

through the president.   

4. Within fourteen calendar days after the annual organizational meeting of the District Board of 

Trustees, the president of the College shall file with the Chancellor of the State Board of 

Education a copy of the organizational proceedings identifying the chairperson and vice 

chairperson and the schedule of regular meetings for the year.  

5. If the position of chairperson becomes vacant, the Board shall proceed to elect a chairperson 

at the ensuing regular or special meeting. At the organizational meeting, the president shall act 

as chairperson until the organization is completed.  

6. It is the duty of the Board chairperson to notify the Governor, in writing, whenever a Board 

member fails to attend three (3) consecutive regular board meetings in any one fiscal year; such 

absences may be grounds for removal.  

 

 

 

 

1-2  

62



      Agenda Item: 11.E.4
                    Action
    

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.04: 
District Bord of Trustees -Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the DBOT.  
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel 

 
Summary: 
 
Background: The Staff recommends that the District Board of Trustees repeal policy 
6Hx-18-1:04, consolidating it with 6Hx-18-1.00 to simplify the indexing of Section 1 of 
the DBOT policy. This suggestion follows a recent evaluation of the District Board of 
Trustees' Section 1 - General Policies. This consolidation enhances the efficiency and 
clarity of policies.  
 
This policy was initially presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 
The DBOT did not request any additional comments or changes during that session. 
 
Financial Impact:  N/A 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Conscientious:  We serve the College community and 
global society as we aspire to do what is right, ethical, and fair. 
 
Duration of Contract:  N/A 
 
 
RECOMMEND: Approval 
 
 
Attachments: Second Reading - Repeal  Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the 
DBOT Policy 6Hx-18-1.04 
 
              
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 
 

63



Palm Beach State College  Board Policy  

TITLE  
  

Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the 
District Board of Trustees  

NUMBER  
6Hx-18-1.04  

LEGAL  AUTHORITY  
1001.61 FS, 1001.64 FS; 6A-14.024 FAC  PAGE  

1 of 1  

DATE 
ADOPTED/AMENDED  

Readopted 2/27/1975; Amended 6/22/1975, 
6/19/2001  

  

  

Policy:  

1. The District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State College is responsible for the proper 
operation of the College in accordance with Florida statutes and rules of the State Board of 
Education.   

2. The District Board of Trustees, after considering recommendations submitted by the president, 
shall adopt such rules, policies, and procedures as are necessary to operate the College in such 
manner as to assure the fulfillment of the responsibilities assigned to the District Board of 
Trustees. {The Board can act without the recommendation of the President pursuant to Florida 
Statutes 1001.64(3).} These rules, procedures, and policies may supplement those prescribed 
by the State Board of Education if they will contribute to the more orderly and efficient 
operation of the state community college system. Such rules, procedures, and policies for the 
District Board of Trustees of Palm Beach State College shall include but are not limited to 
those authorized by the provisions of Section 1001.64, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-14.024, 
Florida Administrative Code.  

1-5  

64



         Agenda Item: 11.E.5 
               Action 
    

Palm Beach State College 
District Board of Trustees 

Agenda Transmittal Sheet 
 

Date:   September 24, 2024 

To:   Members of the District Board of Trustees 

From:   Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 

Subject: Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:041 
Notice to Amend, Repeal or Adopt Board Rule.  
Staff Contact: Geovanni J. Denis, Esq., Associate General Counsel 

 
Summary: 
Background/Pertinent Facts:  The current Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.041: Notice to Amend, 
Repeal, or Adopt Board Rule is recommended for amendment. 6A-14-0.24 FAC is 
repealed. Additionally, we recommend adding a policy introduction so that the DBOT 
policies are subject to regular and continuous review. Language was added to clarify 
minor changes to board policies for the enhancement of business practices.  
 
This policy was initially presented to the Board on August 20, 2024, for a first reading. 
The DBOT did not request any additional comments or changes during that session.  
 
The recommendations are made as part of the Legal Department’s commitment to 
bring Policies up to date.   
 
Financial Impact:  n/a 
 
Strategic Goal(s) Addressed:  Conscientious:  We serve the College community and 
global society as we aspire to do what is right, ethical, and fair. 
 
Duration of Contract:  n/a 
 
Attachments: Second Reading - Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: The District 
Board of Trustees 
 
Approval: Ava L. Parker, J.D., President 
 
This item has been approved electronically by the appropriate executive and/or 
supervisor. 

65



Palm Beach State College   Board Policy  
TITLE  

  
Notice to Amend, Repeal, or Adopt Board 
Rule  

NUMBER  
6Hx-18-1.041  

LEGAL  AUTHORITY  1001.64 FS, 120.54 FS, 6A-14.024 FAC  PAGE  

1 of 1  

DATE 
ADOPTED/AMENDED  

Adopted 6/28/1979; Amended 7/26/1979, 
6/19/2001, XX/YY/2024 

  

  

Policies adopted by The District Board of Trustees are subject to regular and continuous review 
for mission and strategy relevance, compliance, clarity, and effectiveness. The President or 
designee shall adopt, amend and/or propose repeal, as necessary due to changes in law or other 
circumstances. 

 

Policy:  

Palm Beach State College shall inform the public of proposed new policies, revisions to existing 
policies, or the elimination of policies in accordance with procedures established by Section 
120.54, Florida Statutes, as amended.  at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action.  

After publication of proposed new policies, revisions to, or elimination of existing policies, an 
individual may request, within twenty-one (21) days of publication, to present evidence and 
argument on all issues under consideration.  
 
Proceedings, adoption of, revisions to, and elimination of existing policies shall be in accordance 
with procedures established by Section 120.54, Florida Statutes.   
 
 
The District Board of Trustees authorizes the President or designee(s) to periodically adopt routine 
changes to Board policies (Minor Amendments). Minor Amendments are editorial changes that do 
not otherwise affect the policy content or substance, such as for the purpose of reflecting changes 
in various types of policy provisions, including without limitation organizational structure, position 
or office titles, dates, information technology based systems, contact names and information, 
references to laws, rules or policies, renumbering/reorganization of policies; and to correct 
grammar, punctuation, or clerical errors; or to conform to other Board policies in any other non-
substantive ways. Such Minor Amendments may be made to Board policy at any time during the 
life cycle of a policy, shall properly reflect the intent of the existing Board policy, and may be 
adopted without further Board consideration, action or notice. 
 
All approved Board policies will be posted on the College’s District Board of Trustees Policy 
Webpage. 

66



 

67


	I. MEETING CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	II. COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS
	A. Faculty Comment

	III. AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS
	IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES
	A. Approve the August 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES - Regular Meeting Minutes August 20, 2024.pdf


	V. APPROVAL OF BOARD AGENDA
	A. Abstentions by Board Members
	B. Public Comments

	VI. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	1. Approve Contract Extension with Association of College and University Educators (ACUE) for Additional Cohorts in the amount of $400,000 and Authorize the President or Designee to Execute Agreement Documents
	Transmittal ACUE Extension MT6206.docx


	B. Finance and Administration
	1. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to the General, Unrestricted, Operating Fund (Fund 1) Reclassifying Budget Expenditures from Current Operating Expense to Compensation Expense for the Fiscal Year 2023-24
	MT6204-Budget Amendment Request Transmittal.docx
	Budget Amendment #1 FY23-24.pdf

	2. Approval of Carryforward Spending Plan
	MT6203 Carryforward Spending Plan Transmittal.docx
	23-24 Carryforward Spending Plan Template 08.13.24 Final.pdf
	Certification of Financials 2023-2024.pdf


	C. Information Services
	D. Human Resources

	VII. APPROVAL ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
	VIII. TRUSTEES' COMMITTEE REPORTS
	IX. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
	A. TMRW Sports Update
	B. $4.1M U.S. Department of Transportation and HUD Grant
	C. President's 2024-2025 Goals

	X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	B. Finance and Administration
	1. District Facilities Master Projects List Dated September 4, 2024
	TRMTL_Sept_MasterProj_MT6201_X.B.1.docx
	District Facilities Master Projects List_9-4-2024.pdf

	2. Financial Analysis and Review - August 2024
	MT-6205 Budget Analysis August 2024 Transmittal.docx
	Budget.Analysis.August.31.2024.pdf


	C. Information Services
	D. Human Resources
	E. Legal

	XI. ACTION ITEMS
	A. Academic Affairs / Academic Innovation and Strategy / Student Services
	B. Finance and Administration
	1. Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.51 Acquisition of Professional Architectural, Engineering, Landscape Architectural, or Land Surveying Service
	TRMTL_Repeal 6Hx-18-4.51 Prof Services_MT6199_XI.B.1.docx
	REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.51 Professional Services.pdf

	2. Second Reading and Request for Approval to Repeal Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Architects, Engineers, and Planners
	TRMTL_REPEAL Policy 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees_MT6200_XI.B.2.docx
	REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.52 Fees for Arch, Engr, Planners.pdf

	3. Review Annual Financial Report for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year
	4. Second Reading - REPEAL 6Hx-18-4.63 Liquidated Damages
	Transmittal XI B 4 _Repeal of DBOT Policy 4.63.docx
	Second Reading - REPEAL Liquidated Damages Policy (6Hx-18-4.63).pdf


	C. Information Services
	D. Human Resources
	E. Legal
	1. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.00: The District Board of Trustees
	Transmittal_11.E.1.docx
	Second Reading - Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.00: The District Board of Trustees.pdf

	2. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:02: Meeting of the District Board of Trustees
	Transmittal_11.E.2.docx
	Second Reading - Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.02 - Meetings of the District Board of Trustees.pdf

	3. Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.01: District Board of Trustees - Organization and Membership
	Transmittal_11.E.3.docx
	Second Reading - Repeal of District Board of Trustees Organization and Membership Policy 6Hx-18-1.01.pdf

	4. Second Reading - Approve the Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.04: District Bord of Trustees -Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the DBOT
	Transmittal_11.E.4.docx
	Second Reading - Repeal of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1.04: District Board of Trustees -Powers, Duties, and Responsibilities of the DBOT.pdf

	5. Second Reading - Approve Amendment of Board Policy 6Hx-18-1:041 Notice to Amend, Repeal or Adopt Board Rule
	Transmittal_11.E.5.docx
	Second Reading: Amendment of Board Policy  6Hx-18-1.041 Notice to Amend, Repeal, or Adopt Board Rule.pdf



	XII. OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Board of Trustees Committee Appointments

	XIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
	A. The College will be closed for Development Day on Tuesday, October 8, 2024.
	B. The next District Board of Trustees meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 15, 2024, on the Lake Worth Campus.

	XIV. ADJOURNMENT



